Meeting Packet

REGULAR SESSION
8/22/2024

07:00 PM

Packet page 1 of 54



PHiLoMmATH ScHooL DisTtriCcT 17

REGULAR SESSION

PHILOMATH SCHOOL DISTRICT 17J
District Office
1620 Applegate Street, Philomath

8/22/2024 07:00 PM

A. REGULAR SESSION ~ 7:00 p.m.

1. Call to Order: Chairperson
i. Pledge of Allegiance
ii. Approval of Consent Agenda
Consent Agenda (p. 4)
Regular Board Meeting Minutes July 9, 2024 (p. 5)
iii. Request for Agenda Modifications

2. Public Comment

B. REPORTS~

1. Association Reports

= PEA
= OSEA

2. Superintendent Report
3. Financial Report

Pre-Audit Board Communication (p. 8)

4. English Learners Annual Report
English Learners Annual Report (p. 11)

C. STRATEGY AND DISCUSSION ~
1. Inservice Week Updates

2. Upcoming Work Sessions

= Work Session: Safety
m Planning Session: Calendar, Goals, Roles & Responsibilities and Operating Agreements - October 8th

—~ oS taPlaithdaloh ¥aS S S, W alsa: VoS Ndhtanitnh W Ol

Packet page 2 of 54



D. DIDUUDDIUN & ACITIUN 11EMD ~
1. Second Reading Policies

i. BBFC: Reporting of Suspected Abuse of a Child
BBFC (p. 47)

ii. CBC: Superintendent's Contract
CBC (p. 48)
iii. JGA: Corporal Punishment
JGA (p. 50)
iv. JH: Student Welfare
JH (p. 51)
v. KBA-AR: Public Records
KBA-AR (p. 52)
E. MEETING CLOSURE ~
1. Next Meeting Agenda Items
2. Board Thanks
3. Board Requests

4. Adjournment

F. IMPORTANT DATES

Sep 3 School begins - staggered start
Sep 12 7:00 pm Regular Board Meeting

Sep Hispanic Heritage Month

Oct 8 6-8 pm Annual Board Work Session
Sep 18 Various Back-to-School Open House

Packet page 3 of 54



Philomath School District 17J

CONSENT AGENDA

August 22, 2024

A. Minutes:
1. Regular Session Minutes — July 9, 2024
B. Out of State Travel: None
C. Personnel/Staffing Adjustments:
1. Retirements:
1. None at this time
2. Resignations:
i. PMS
ii. CPS
3. New Hires:
i. PSD Special Education Teacher
ii. Library Media Specialist
iii. PA/District Administrator
4. Staff Reassignments/Changes in FTE:
i. .4 FTEto.875FTE
5. Coaches:
i. None at this time
6. Extra Duty Assignments:
None at this time

Rebecca Davis
Barbara Seidell

Linda Jmail
Rachel Baker
Garth Gerot

Elisabeth Strand

Updated: 8/12/24 4:08 PM

Packet page 4 of 54



REGULAR SESSION

Meeting Minutes

PHILOMATH SCHOOL DISTRICT 17J
District Office
1620 Applegate Street, Philomath

7/9/2024 07:00 PM

A. EXECUTIVE SESSION

The Board convened into Executive Session at 5:30 pm Per ORS 192.660(2)(b) to consider the
dismissal or disciplining of, or to hear complaints or charges brought against, a public officer,
employee, staff member or agent, unless he or she requests an open meeting; and per ORS 192.660
(2)(d) to conduct deliberations with persons designated by the governing body to carry on labor
negotiations; and per ORS 192.660(2)(f) to consider records exempt by law from public inspection.

B. REGULAR SESSION

1. Call to Order: The Regular Session of the Philomath School District Board of Directors
was called to order by Board Chair Rick Wells at 7:04 pm on July 9, 2024 at the Philomath
School District Boardroom located at 1620 Applegate Street. Those in attendance included
Philomath School District Board of Directors Rick Wells, Joe Dealy, Sandi Hering, Erin Gudge,
and Ryan Cheeke; Superintendent Susan Halliday; Executive Assistant Michele McRae. Ryan
Cheeke left the meeting at 7:54 pm.

Pledge of Allegiance: Director Cheeke led us in the Pledge of Allegiance.

Approval of Consent Agenda: Director Gudge moved to approve the Consent
Agenda as updated in the Board packet. The motion was seconded by Director
Dealy, and it was unanimously approved by the Board. Motion passes 5-0.
Request for Agenda Modifications: The Board Retreat was changed to
Annual Work Session. Director Hering requested that Student Representative to the
Board be added to the agenda.

2. Election of Board Officers

Chair: Director Cheeke nominated Director Wells for Chair. Director Hering
seconded the motion, and the Board unanimously approved the motion. Motion
passes 5-0.

Vice Chair: Director Cheeke nominated Director Gudge for Vice Chair. Director Dealy
seconded the motion, and the Board unanimously approved the motion. Motion
passes 5-0.

Page 1 of 3

Packet page 5 of 54



Public Comment: There were no public comments.

4. Complaint Hearing Decision: Director Wells reported that the Board heard a
complaint against the Superintendent in Executive Session, and the Board requires
additional time in Executive Session per ORS 192.660(2)(b) and 192.660(2)(f). They decided
to meet again on July 16" at 7:00 pm, and then convene into open session at 8:00 pm to
announce their decision.

5. Designation of Roles: This was included in the Consent Agenda.

6. Confirm 2024-2025 Board Meeting Schedule: The Board decided to change the
Board Meeting Schedule for 2024-2025 to the second Thursday of each month except for
August and June. August’s meeting will take place on August 22", and June’s meeting date
will be decided next year. Director Cheeke moved to change the Board meeting schedule to
the second Thursday of each month. Director Hering seconded the motion, and the Board
unanimously approved it. Motion passes 5-0.

7. Set Annual Work Session Date: The Board decided to have their Annual Work
Session on October 8" from 6-8 pm. Director Cheeke would like a detailed description of the
Board Liaison Roles to be decided at the Work Session.

8. In-Service Barbecue: The all staff barbecue will take place on Wednesday, August 28",
The Board will host and prepare the barbecue.

C. STRATEGY AND DISCUSSION

1. Superintendent’s Report: Superintendent Halliday reported that all students will
receive free lunch for the next four years. She also reported that the Early Learning Hub
received extra money that will go towards the preschool program(s) on the PSD campus.

2. Cell Phones in Schools: Director Wells asked the Board if banning student cell phones
in school is a topic that the Board would like to discuss, or if it’s a topic that the
administration should discuss. Superintendent Halliday explained recent decisions by other
school districts. The consensus of the Board was to have the administrators discuss this
topic. They would also like to hear from the community at some point.

3. Student Body Fee at Elementary Level: The elementary school has inquired about
the implementation of a student body fee to help cover activities. The Board is going to raise
money to donate to the elementary school for the activities in the upcoming school year.

4. Student Representative to the Board: Director Hering asked about the status of
finding the 2024-2025 Student Representative to the Board. Director Gudge explained that
now that the policy has been adopted, this will happen at the beginning of the school year.

D. MEETING CLOSURE
1. Next Meeting Agenda Items: Any housekeeping items for August.

2. Board Thanks: Director Gudge thanked everyone who facilitated the CEP Food Service
Agreement. It will be a tremendous benefit to the students of the Philomath School District.
She also thanked Abby Couture and Paul Smith for securing the additional funding for the
preschool program(s). Director Hering thanked people for attending tonight’s meeting.
Director Wells thanked everyone who is working diligently to prepare the schools for the
beginning of the school year.

Page 2 of 3

Packet page 6 of 54



3. Board Requests: None
4. Adjournment: Director Wells adjourned the meeting at 7:57 pm.

Board Chair

Superintendent

Date

Page 3 of 3

Packet page 7 of 54



/

Accuty

Where accuracy meets integrity
CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

July 1, 2024

Board of Directors

Philomath School District No. 17]
1620 Applegate Street
Philomath, OR 97370

Board of Directors:

We are engaged to audit the financial statements of the governmental activities,
blended or discretely presented component unit, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of Philomath School District No. 17] for the year ended
June 30, 2024. Professional standards require that we provide you with the following
information related to our audit. We would also appreciate the opportunity to meet
with you to discuss this information further since a two-way dialogue can provide
valuable information for the audit process.

Our Responsibility under U.S. Generally Accepted Auditing Standards and Government
Auditing Standards

As stated in our engagement letter dated June 2024, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to express opinions about whether the financial statements
prepared by management with your oversight are fairly presented, in all material
respects, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. Our audit of
the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your responsibilities.

In planning and performing our audit, we will consider Philomath School District No.
17]’s internal control over financial reporting in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements and
not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. We will also
consider internal control over compliance with requirements that could have a direct
and material effect on a major federal program in order to determine our auditing
procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and to test and
report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance.

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Philomath School District No.
17]’s financial statements are free of material misstatement, we will perform tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants.

436 1% Avenue W | P.O. Box 1072 | Albany, Oregon 97321
(541) 223-5555 | www.accuitycpas.com | Fax (541) 730-4420

Packet page 8 of 54



However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions is not an objective
of our audit. Also in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, we will examine, on a test
basis, evidence about Philomath School District No. 17]’s compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget
(OMB) Compliance Supplement applicable to each of its major federal programs for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on Philomath School District No. 17]'s compliance
with those requirements. While our audit will provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion, it will not provide a legal determination on Philomath School District No. 17]’s
compliance with those requirements.

Generally accepted accounting principles provide for certain required supplementary
information (RSI) to supplement the basic financial statements. Our responsibility with
respect to management’s discussion and analysis, schedules of funding progress and
employer contributions, if applicable, and schedules of the government’s proportionate
share of the net pension and OPEB liabilities and government contributions, if
applicable, which supplement(s) the basic financial statements, is to apply certain
limited procedures in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards.
However, the RSI will not be audited and, because the limited procedures do not
provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance, we will not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSI.

The following RSI is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board and
will be subjected to the auditing procedures applied in our audit of the financial
statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with GAAS and will provide an opinion on it in
relation to the financial statements as a whole:

1. Schedules of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and
Actual - General Fund and Major Special Revenue Funds, if any

We have been engaged to report on combining balance sheet and combining statement
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances for all nonmajor governmental
funds, if any, schedules of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balance- budget
and actual- nonmajor special revenue funds, debt service funds, and capital projects
funds, if any, and schedule of expenditures of federal awards, which accompany the
financial statements but are not RSI. Our responsibility for this supplementary
information, as described by professional standards, is to evaluate the presentation of
the supplementary information in relation to the financial statements as a whole and to

report on whether the supplementary information is fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

Packet page 9 of 54



Planned Scope, Timing of the Audit, Significant Risks, and Other

An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements; therefore, our audit will involve judgment about
the number of transactions to be examined and the areas to be tested.

Our audit will include obtaining an understanding of the entity and its environment,
including internal control, sufficient to assess the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements and to design the nature, timing, and extent of further audit
procedures. Material misstatements may result from (1) errors, (2) fraudulent financial
reporting, (3) misappropriation of assets, or (4) violations of laws or governmental
regulations that are attributable to the entity or to acts by management or employees
acting on behalf of the entity. We will generally communicate our significant findings at
the conclusion of the audit. However, some matters could be communicated sooner,
particularly if significant difficulties are encountered during the audit where assistance
is needed to overcome the difficulties or if the difficulties may lead to a modified
opinion. We will also communicate any internal control related matters that are
required to be communicated under professional standards.

We have identified the following significant risk(s) of material misstatement as part of
our auditing planning;:

1. Revenue recognition (presumptive risk)

We expect to begin our audit on approximately October 31, 2024, and issue our report
on approximately December 31, 2024. Kori Sarrett is the engagement partner and is
responsible for supervising the engagement and signing the report or authorizing
another individual to sign it.

This information is intended solely for the use of the Board of Directors and
management of Philomath School District No. 17] and is not intended to be, and should
not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

If you have any questions, please contact my office at your convenience.

Very truly yours,

Accuity, LLC /

Packet page 10 of 54



English Learners in
Oregon
Annual Report 2022-23

June 2024

OREGON

; . DEPARTMENT OF
EDUCATION

Oregon achieves . . . together!

Packet page 11 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Table of Contents

AcCKkNOWIEAZEMENTS ......ccuuiieeiiiiiiiiticrtectiereeereeereeeerenseressernsceescesnsessnserassensesans 2
EXECULIVE SUMMANY ....ceuiieiiiiiieiieiiiencteiieettencretescrnscsnssasssesssnssasssnscssssasssasssnssasssnsed

L334 Yo 1¥ Tt 4 o o TR -
WHY BHIS FEPOIT? w...vvvevvvevesesesss s sss st 6
SEIUCEUIE OF This FEPOI . veeieecececeeeeee ettt ettt ettt ea et et e e s s et et eeeses e s eteseseas s et st eseseas et seetese st seseesennans 7

Section 1: Demographics of English Learners in Oregon in 2022-23......................8

Current and FOrmer ENGlISh LEAINEIS ......cce ettt ettt e et e e e ettt e e s s ebae e e eebreeeeentaeeeenneaeaeeenseneaan 8

Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs.........cccccceevreenerrenccrrenncrreneerenneene. 16

Free OF REAUCEA PriCE IMBAIS ....ocoeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e e e e e e e e e aaeaeeeeaeeaeeeaaaaeaaaeaaeaeeeeeeessenneneens 16
Y1 T={g T oY fl e [N Tor Y d [o] o PP 19
B[] 0 (<o =T o I CT 1 (=T [ 20

Section 3: Language Development and Academic Outcomes for English Learners

Progress towards English Language ProfiCiENCY ......c.eecieeeciieieiie ettt e tee e st esnne s e eneeens 21

Student Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics .......c..coccveeeiiieeecceee e, 23

Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond.25

Y0 | YA A { Yo Vo F=Y o ol YRR 25
(O] o T = Tol [ o X € = Lo [V F=) 26
o TN =T g €] = [0 [N F=Y o Lo o AP 27

Current English learners graduating in four years were over 2.8 times more likely to receive a modified

(o 1701 1o s o - SR 28
Oregon State SEal Of BilIEEIraCY «....coiii ittt et e bt e e s e e s ee e snee s 28
Lo T KY=YoloY Ve =T VA =l a o] | T o 1T o | USSR 30

Section 5: State Revenues and Expenditures for Current English Learners ........32

(0= =] =) 1 Lo = R 1 |

Packet page 12 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Acknowledgements

We extend our appreciation to colleagues from across ODE who contributed to this report through data

sharing, data analysis, and review of the findings.

Office of Teaching, Learning, and Assessment
Jennifer Patterson, Assistant Superintendent
Mary Martinez-Wenzl, Director

Reza Norouzian, Research Analyst

Kim Miller, Education Program Specialist

Office of Equity, Diversity, and Inclusion

Deb Lange, Assistant Superintendent

Kelly Kalkofen, Education Program Specialist

Mirela Blekic, Education Program Specialist

Mariana Praschnik-Enriquez, Education Program Specialist
Ana Salas, Executive Support Specialist

Susy Mekarski, Education Program Specialist

Office of Finance and Information Technology
Kai Turner, Assistant Superintendent
Lauren Holstein, Business Analyst

Office of Research, Assessment, Data, Accountability, and Reporting

Dan Farley, Assistant Superintendent

Jon Wiens, Director

Andrea Lockard, Director

Ben Wolcott, Education Program Specialist
W. Joshua Rew, Psychometrician

Greg Houser, Research Analyst

Evan Fuller, Research Analyst

Stephanie Evers, Research Analyst

Packet page 13 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Executive Summary

ORS 327.016 directs the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) to prepare an annual report on English
learner program funding and student outcomes. The report’s intention is to describe the population of
English Learners in Oregon and provide a summary of district and state progress towards meeting their needs
and objectives. This report is also available on ODE’s legislative reports webpage. Any member of the public

can contact the Government Relations and External Affairs Director to request a copy of this report.

Definitions

ORS 327.016 describes students who receive English language instruction, supports, and services as part of
an English language development (ELD) program as English learners. While these students are learning
English in an ELD program, the English learner label only focuses on a singular dimension (i.e., learning
English) and does not reflect the linguistic and cultural assets of the students (Garcia, 2009). Thus, although
this report will use the English Learner label in order to comply with ORS 327.016, we recognize these
students are multilingual learners who bring valuable linguistic and cultural assets.

The ODE annually reports four groups of English learners: current, former, ever, and never English learners.
Current English learners are multilingual students who were learning English in an ELD program during the
2022-23 school year!. Former English learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to the 2022-23 school year. Ever English learners are the
combination of both current and former English learners. Finally, never English learners are monolingual
English or multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and
services in an ELD program before or during the 2022-23 school year.

Nearly 100,000 students in Oregon are current or former English learners.

As of May 1, 2023, 545,609 students enrolled in Oregon public schools and districts. Among those students,
10.9 percent were current English learners (59,263 students), 7.5 percent were former English learners
(40,912 students), and 81.6 percent were never English learners (445,434 students). Both current and former
English learners (i.e., ever English learners constituting 18.4 percent of students) were an incredibly diverse
student population in 2022-23.

The distribution of current English learners varied across grade levels and districts in Oregon during the 2022-
23 school year. Woodburn School district served the highest percentage of current English learners, with 41.9
percent of students learning English in an ELD program as of May 1, 2023. On the other hand, 67.9 percent of
Oregon districts either had no current English learners or very few (i.e., less than 5 percent of all students).

Other key features of the English learner student population in the 2022-23 school year include the following:

e The majority of current English learners were in elementary grades (59.2 percent), while the majority
of former English learners were in high school grades (55.6 percent).

! Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction,
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English
language instruction, supports, and services.

Packet page 14 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

e The number of recently arrived current English learners (i.e., new immigrant students) increased
from 4,145 in 2021-22 to 4,851 students in 2022-23.

e Spanish was the predominant home language of current English learners (76 percent), but overall,
there were 222 documented unique home languages (an increase of 23 languages from 2021-22)
spoken by current English learners. Other prevalent languages include Russian, Chinese, Vietnamese,
Arabic, Chuukese, and Ukrainian; each being the home language of about 2 percent of current
English learners.

e Approximately 77 percent of current English learners were Latino/a/x, and 32.7 percent of Latino/a/x
students were current English learners. A similar percentage of Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander
students (32.6 percent) were current English learners.

English learners are overrepresented in special education and underrepresented in
TAG programs.

The report also examines the involvement of English learners in targeted federal and state programs: free or
reduced price meals, special education, migrant education, and the talented and gifted (TAG) program.

Key findings include the following:

e A higher percentage of both current and former English learners were eligible for free or reduced
price meals as compared to students who were never English Learners (88.4 and 79.8 percent vs. 59
percent).

e A higher percentage of current English learners received special education services and supports as
compared to never English learners (19.7 vs. 16.1 percent); however, ever English learners and never
English learners had comparable percentages of students receiving special education services and
supports (14.3 vs. 16.1 percent).

e Almost 10.5 percent of current English learners received services in migrant education programs (i.e.,
6,232 students). Additionally, 57.5 percent of the students in migrant education programs were
current English Learners.

e  While across Oregon 7.0 percent of never English learners participated in TAG programs, this figure
was 5.7 percent for former English learners and just 0.5 percent for current English learners.

Younger English learners are more likely to be on track to English Language Proficiency
than their older peers.

Oregon monitors whether or not current English learners are on-track to attain English language proficiency
within seven years. More than half of current English learners (58.8 percent) in elementary school grades
were on track. In contrast, current English learners in middle or high school grades as well as current English
learners with disabilities were much less likely to be on track.

Very few current English learners are meeting state standards in English Language Arts
and Mathematics.

A substantially smaller percentage of current English learners in elementary schools (6.6 percent) versus
former (54.6 percent) and never English learners (47.8 percent) met or exceeded state standards in English
Language Arts in 2022-23. A similar trend is observed at middle and high schools.

4

Packet page 15 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Similarly, a substantially smaller percentage of current English learners in elementary schools (7.1 percent)
versus former (44.3 percent) and never English learners (40.0 percent) met or exceeded state standards in
mathematics in 2022-23. A similar trend is observed at middle and high schools.

Attendance rates are lower among current ELs, particularly in high school.

Former and never English learners have the highest levels of regular attendance (75.2 and 64.9 percent) in
elementary school grades. Current English learners have rates of regular attendance substantially lower in
elementary (58.3 percent), middle (56.2 percent), and high school (44.0 percent) grades. Regular attendance
rates decline for current, former, and never English learners in middle and high school grades.

Current English learners are more likely to graduate with a modified diploma.

Former English learners graduated at rates better than never English learners (87.6 vs. 81.5 percent) in 2022-
23; however, substantially fewer current English learners graduated in four years (68.1 percent). Moreover,
current English learners that graduated in four years were over 2.8 times more likely to receive a modified
rather than a regular diploma compared to that for never English learners. This ratio was only slightly smaller
(2.5 times) for the cohorts that graduated in five years.

Students designated as English learners in high school are less likely to go to college

than their peers.

Post-secondary enrollment rates for former English learners were comparable to those of never English
learners; in both cases, about 55 percent of high school graduates enroll in college within 16 months of
graduation. On the other hand, current English learners were less likely to enroll in post-secondary education
institutions. Over 39 percent of current English learners went on to college within 16 months of high school

graduation.

District revenues and expenditures

As in reports from previous years, this report summarizes the ratio of total current English learner
expenditures to revenues districts receive for these students. In 2022-23, this ratio is 0.87, which is only
slightly higher than 0.86 for 2021-22.

Packet page 16 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Introduction

In 2022-23, students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an English language
development (ELD) program as well as students who exited the ELD program prior to the 2022-23 school year
made up 18.4 percent of all students in Oregon public schools and districts (as of the first school day in May
2023). They form a vital part of our student communities and bring a variety of cultural and linguistic assets
that enrich our schools and districts. This report describes this diverse population of students, examines their
academic progress and achievement, and summarizes information about key aspects of the education they
receive in our state.

Why this report?

ORS 327.016 directs the Oregon Department of Education (ODE) to prepare an annual report on English
learner program funding and student outcomes. The report’s intention is to describe the population of
English Learners in Oregon and provide a summary of district and state progress towards meeting their needs
and objectives in ELD programs. ORS 327.016 requires ODE to include the following information in the annual

report:

e English learner student demographics;

e Length of participation in ELD programs;

e Participation in special education and related services; and
e Other information identified by the ODE.

In addition, the annual report must include the following financial information:

e Allocations to each school district from the State School Fund for students enrolled in ELD programs;
e The extent to which districts expend these allocations for students enrolled in ELD programs; and
e The categories of expenditures for ELD program funding.

Each annual report looks back at the prior school year, which for this year is the 2022-23 school year. This
report will be available on the ODE website, submitted to House and Senate Education Committees, and
provided to district school boards. State law requires the report to be available to the public at each district’s
main office and on district websites.

Definitions

ORS 327.016 describes students who receive English language instruction, supports, and services as part of
an ELD program as English learners. While these students are learning English in an ELD program, the English
learner label only focuses on a singular dimension (i.e., learning English) and does not reflect the linguistic
and cultural assets of the students (Garcia, 2009). Thus, although this report will use the English Learner label
in order to comply with ORS 327.016, we recognize these students are multilingual and value their linguistic
and cultural assets.

The ODE annually reports four groups of English learners: current, former, ever, and never English learners.
Current English learners are multilingual students who were learning English in an ELD program during the

Packet page 17 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

2022-23 school year?. Former English learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to the 2022-23 school year. Ever English learners are the
combination of both current and former English learners. Finally, never English learners are monolingual or
multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in
an ELD program before or during the 2022-23 school year.

Structure of this report

This report consists of five sections:
Section 1: Demographics of English Learners
Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs
Section 3: Language Development and Academic Achievement
Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond
Section 5: State Revenues and Expenditures for English Learners

Several aspects of this year’s report differ from the reports the ODE issued in previous years. For example,

where appropriate, this report provides comparisons to never English learners (i.e., students not eligible to
receive services from an ELD program). Furthermore, in addition to describing statewide patterns, in some

cases the report indicates which districts serve high percentages of certain types of students (e.g., students
participating in migrant education programs). Finally, like last year, this year’s report provides data insights
into Student Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics that were not available during
the period impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic.

2 Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction,
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English
language instruction, supports, and services.

Packet page 18 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Section 1: Demographics of English Learners in Oregon in 2022-23

Almost one in five Oregon students has been designated as an English learner. As of the first school day in
May 2023, 545,609 students enrolled in Oregon public schools and districts. Among those students, 10.9
percent were current English learners (59,263 students), 7.5 percent were former English learners (40,912
students), and 81.6 percent were never English learners (445,434 students). Both current and former English
learners were an incredibly diverse student population in 2022-23 (representing 18.4 percent of all students).
These students brought a rich linguistic and cultural heritage to their classrooms, schools, and communities.
This section summarizes the demographics of Oregon’s English learner population, considering grade levels,
interruptions in formal education among newcomer immigrant students, and racial, ethnic, and linguistic
diversity.

Current and Former English Learners

Current English Learners are multilingual students who are learning English in an ELD program during the
school year3. They receive English language instruction, supports, and services because they are to help them
become proficient in English. The reason for the lack of English proficiency is because English is not their
native language, or they come from an environment where a language other than English has had a
significant impact on their English proficiency. Identification of English learners is done using a Language Use
Survey (LUS) as well as an English Language Proficiency Assessment (ELPA) screener. As noted earlier, in
2022-23, 59,263 of Oregon’s 545,609 K-12 students, or 10.9 percent, were current English learners* (see
figure 1).

Figure 1. Percentage of all Oregon students who were current English Learners (2017-18 to 2022-23)

14

10.9
12 9.6
10 8.9
10.4
8
o1 9.3

6

4

2

0

2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

A smaller number of students in 2022-23 (40,912 or 7.5 percent) were former English learners. Former
English learners are multilingual students who demonstrated English proficiency and exited an ELD program
prior to the 2022-23 school year. Research does suggest, however, that former English learners may still need
support to develop high levels of proficiency in academic English (i.e., the language students need in order to
be successful in school; see de Jong 2004; Flores, Batalova & Fix, 2012). Given its importance, during its

3 Note that current English learners also include students who are eligible to receive English language instruction,
supports, and services in an ELD program but do not participate because their parents or guardians waive English
language instruction, supports, and services.

% The data for this portion of the report relies on student enrollments as of the first school day in May 2023.

8

Packet page 19 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

monitoring process, ODE reviews the ways in which the districts monitor the progress of former English
learners and provides them with feedback to enhance the districts’ ability to support former English learners
continued progress.

Comparisons between current, former, ever, and never English learners are useful to understand the
experiences and outcomes of English learners over time, and to counter misperceptions about English learner
achievement. Current English Learners tend to perform at lower levels while still developing English,
particularly on assessments of content knowledge that are administered in English, which can negatively
impact their performance. However, once current English learners attain English language proficiency, they
often perform academically at significantly higher levels than their peers, including monolingual English
speakers indicating the value of bilingualism (Thompson, Umansky, & Rew, 2022; Hopkins, Thompson,
Linquanti, Hakuta, & August, 2013).

Oregon has had a largely stable population of about 100,000 English learners (former and current) over the
past several years. Figure 2 shows the change in the count of current, former, and ever English learners in
Oregon over the last six school years. In general, it displays a slightly fluctuating population of ever English
learners in Oregon, starting at 102,553 in 2017-18 and, after increasing and declining for a couple years,
reaching 100,175 students in 2022-23.

Figure 2. Number of current, former, and ever English Learners in Oregon (2017-18 to 2022-23)

120000 107553 103370 99453 100175
100000 9.'.l.‘..l.l..I’.....l................Q........l.....l.....~..............
102800 102340
80000 51967 c3677 56633 59263
60000 51126 53489
50481 40912
20000 42770
0
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
Current English Learners e e« = Former English Learners eeeeee Ever English Learners

The majority of current English Learners were in the elementary grades.

Although there were current English learners at every grade level, approximately two-thirds (59.2%) were in
kindergarten through fifth grade. Far fewer current English learners were in middle school (grades 6-8; 20.1
percent) or in high school (grades 9-12; 20.6 percent). Figure 3 shows the percent of current and former
English learners by grade in 2022-23. As the grade level increases from kindergarten to twelfth grade, the
percent of current English learners decreases as they attain English proficiency and exit their ELD programs
(subsequently, this results in an increase of former English learners). For example, across the elementary
grades, the percentage of elementary students who are current English learners ranges from 68.8 percent to
100 percent, while in the secondary grades it ranges from 45.0 percent to 57.7 percent, and in high school it
ranges from 30.9 percent to 39.7 percent.

Packet page 20 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 3. Comparison of the percentage of current and former English learners by grade in 2022-23

[ —

B Current English Learners
B Former English Learners
o | |rr—— . .

Ka 4 2 3 4 5 6 ¢ & 8 10 © 12

80
|

Percent of Students
40

Grade

English Learner enrollment varied across Oregon districts.

Oregon has 197 school districts. In 2022-23, 153 districts provided English language instruction, supports, and
services to current English learners. Over 80 districts participated in Title Il funds in a consortium as these
districts had fewer than 77 identified English learners and therefore did not generate the federally required
$10,000 minimum Title |1l sub-grant. These districts with small EL populations may experience challenges
with the students being enrolled across several grade levels, may have different English language proficiency
levels, or may have limited ELD teachers. The remaining districts in Oregon (n = 44) did not have any enrolled
English learners.

Figure 4 shows the distribution of current English learners across Oregon districts in 2022-23. There were
eight districts with more than 2,000 current English learners. Thus, in 2022-23, districts differed in terms of
both the number of current English learners and/or the percentage of their student population who received
English language instruction, supports, and services.

Statewide, about a quarter of Oregon districts (n = 51) provided English language instruction, supports, and
services to between 1 and 19 current English learners. This suggests these districts have too few current
English learners to be independently eligible for Federal Title Il subgrant. However, such districts can always
form or join a consortium of districts to become eligible for the improvement efforts under state and federal
accountability initiatives.

10

Packet page 21 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

A sizable proportion of Oregon districts did not have any current English learner enrollments in 2022-23. The
44 districts not currently serving English learners tended to be small in overall population (median 122
students).

Figure 4. Comparison of the number and percentage of current English learners by district in 2022-23

45
40
35
30
25
20
15
10

5

0

0 1,000 2,000 3,000 4,000 5,000 6,000 7,000 8,000 9,000

This variation across districts is also evident in table 1, which shows the ten districts with the highest
numbers of current English learners.

Table 1. Districts with the highest number of current
English learners in 2022-23.

District Name Number of
Current English Learners
Salem-Keizer SD 24) 8,088
Beaverton SD 48) 5,680
Portland SD 1J 4,314
Hillsboro SD 1) 3,836
Reynolds SD 7 3,023
David Douglas SD 40 2,236
Woodburn SD 103 2,182
North Clackamas SD 12 2,160
Gresham-Barlow SD 10J 1,707
Tigard-Tualatin SD 23) 1,423

In addition, table 2 shows the ten districts with the highest percentage of current English learners. Note that
some districts (ex. Woodburn SD 103) appear on both lists. This means that not only do these districts rank
high on the number of current English Learners in the state, but their current English learners also make up a
notable portion of their own overall student population.

11

Packet page 22 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Table 2. Districts with the highest percentage of current
English learners in 2022-23.

S Percentage of
District Name Current Englis: Learners
Woodburn SD 103 41.9%
Umatilla SD 6R 32.6%
Reynolds SD 7 31.3%
Centennial SD 28] 26.1%
David Douglas SD 40 26.1%
Nyssa SD 26 25.6%
Milton-Freewater Unified SD 7 24.4%
Morrow SD 1 24.2%
Gervais SD 1 23.9%
North Marion SD 15 22.3%

The number of recent arrivers increased in 2022-23.

The term recent arrivers refers to students who were born outside of the U.S. and Puerto Rico, and who have
been educated in the U.S. for fewer than three cumulative years (i.e., these students are recent immigrants).
They can be current, former, or never English learners; however, the majority are current English learners.

In 2022-23, 4,851 current English learners were recent arrivers. This number represents one of the largest
counts of recent arrivers over the last six years (see figure 5).

Figure 5. Number of current English learners who were recent arrivers in Oregon (2017-18 to 2022-23).

10,000
8,000

6,000 4,669 4373 4,851

4000 4 685 4,925
4,145

2,000

0
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Most recent arrivers (58.9 percent) were in the elementary grades, while 17.1 percent were in grades 6-8 and
24.0 percent were in high school. Current English learners who are recent arrivers in middle and high school
contend with significant challenges, since they must learn the language while also using English-language
textbooks and lectures to learn the content of their courses in a variety of subject areas (Short &
Fitzsimmons, 2007). Recent arrivers in the secondary grades are known as adolescent newcomers, and
districts sometimes design specialized programs to serve their unique language and cultural needs.

12

Packet page 23 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Statewide, the total number of current English learners who were adolescent newcomers in 2022-23 was
1,995. Not all districts provided English language instruction, support, and services to adolescent newcomers;
however, five Oregon districts with the largest population of such students in 2022-23 are shown in Table 3.

Table 3. Districts with the largest population of adolescent newcomers in 2022-23.

Number of Adolescent Newcomers
District (Recently Arrived Current English Learners in
Middle or High School)
Beaverton SD 48) 338
Salem-Keizer SD 24) 240
David Douglas SD 40 194
Reynolds SD 7 124
Gresham-Barlow SD 10J 91

In 2022-23, districts reported 790 current English learners had experienced

interruptions in their education.

Some current and former English learners had their education interrupted or received limited formal
education before arriving in the U.S. school system. Often, these were immigrant or refugee students who
had spent time in refugee camps or whose process of immigration to the U.S. prevented them from attending
school for a time. These students are known as students with limited or interrupted formal education (often
abbreviated as SIFE or SLIFE). Students are SLIFE if they are immigrant students or English learners who enter
school in the U.S. after grade two and experience all of the following:

a. Have at least two fewer years of schooling than their peers of the same age,
b. Function at least two years below grade level expectations in reading and mathematics, and
c. Are preliterate in their native language.’

SLIFE students face unique circumstances. In addition to having missed at least two years of schooling, some
arrive having experienced significant trauma. Schools need to find ways to serve SLIFE students without
placing them in classes with younger students, since forming relationships with peers, including never English
learner peers, is a factor that appears to improve academic outcomes (Browder, 2014).

The ODE began collecting data on the number of students with limited or interrupted formal education in
2015-16. For the 2022-23 school year, districts reported 790 current English learners with limited or
interrupted formal education (about 1.3 percent of all current English learners). As figure 6 illustrates, the
number of students with limited or interrupted formal education increased from 2016-17 to 2019-20 but
decreased in 2020-21 and once again increased in 2021-22 and 2022-23.

5 See ESEA Title Ill English Learner Definitions for more details.

13

Packet page 24 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 6. Number of current English learners with an interrupted formal education (2017-18 to 2022-23).

1,000 866

795
800 666
885 790
600
690
400
200
0
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Most students with limited or interrupted formal education were in high school (62.2 percent). Another 22.7
percent were in the middle school grades (grades 6-8), and only 15.2 percent were in the elementary grades.

In 2022-23, the distribution of current English learners with limited or interrupted formal education was not
uniform across Oregon districts. Instead, current English learners with limited or interrupted formal
education were, for the most part, concentrated in a few districts. Nine districts in Oregon, identified in table
4, provided English language instruction, supports, and services to at least 20 current English learners with
limited or interrupted formal education in 2022-23. These nine districts alone enrolled 83.3 percent of all
SLIFE students in Oregon. Note that three of the eight districts serving many adolescent newcomers (see
table 3) also enroll a significant number of current English learners with interrupted formal education (i.e.,
Portland, Beaverton, and Reynolds).

Table 4. Districts serving at least 20 current English learners with interrupted formal education in 2022-23

District Number of Current English Learners with
Limited or Interrupted Formal Education

Hillsboro SD 1J 291

Portland SD 1J 91

Beaverton SD 48) 82

Hermiston SD 8 47

Reynolds SD 7 41

Woodburn SD 103 31

South Lane SD 45J3 28

Morrow SD 1 26

Klamath County SD 21

Current English learners across the state spoke 222 unique home languages.

Statewide, current English learners spoke about 222 different languages at home. By far the most prevalent
home language among Oregon current English learners was Spanish, spoken at home by 76.0 percent of all
current English learners. The four next most common languages were Russian, Chinese, Vietnamese, and
Arabic. Taken together, these top five languages represent 84.0 percent of home languages among current
English learners (see Table 5). In recent years, the number of current English learners speaking Somali,
Mesoamerican languages, and other languages has been increasing.

14

Packet page 25 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

In 2020, ODE expanded the language of origin reporting options to include an additional 384 languages; many
of which were Mesoamerican languages such as Mam, Q'anjobal, and K’iche. This was intended to reduce the

prevalence of districts reporting an unknown home language. However, in 2022-23, districts reported an

unidentified home language (listed as ‘other languages’ in Table 5) for 772 English learners, suggesting a

need for continued training and support in this area.

Table 5. Most prevalent home languages among current English learners in 2022-23.

e Number of Curr.ent English Percentage ?f Current English
Learners with this Language Learners with this Language
Spanish 45,035 76.0%
Russian 1,548 2.6%
Chinese 1,178 2.0%
Vietnamese 1,172 2.0%
Arabic 820 1.4%
Chuukese 782 1.3%
Other languages 772 1.3%
Ukrainian 735 1.2%
Somali 571 1.0%

Figure 6 provides a map illustrating the number of different home languages in different Oregon districts. A

few districts, mostly in the Portland metropolitan area and Salem, provide English language instruction,

supports, and services to students with over 60 unique home languages.

Figure 7. Geographic distribution current English learner home languages across Oregon districts during

2022-23

>

r

L
S

2

L

%
2
3

el [ e
i e

Tl =
by =gl

&

Unigue Count of
Home Languages

80

60

40

20

15

Packet page 26 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

The vast majority of current English learners were Latina/o/x.

Of the 59,263 current English learners in Oregon during the 2022-23 school year, 45,463 (76.7 percent) were
Latina/o/x. About 7.7 percent were White and 8.5 were Asian, while smaller percentages were Black/African
American, Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander, American Indian/Alaska Native, and Multi-Racial (see figure 8).

Figure 8. Percentage of current English learners by race/ethnicity in 2022-23.

Latina/o/x 76.7
Asian 8.5
White 7.7
Black/African American 2.9
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 2.5

American Indian/Alaska Native 0.8

Multi-Racial 0.9

It is important to note that most Latina/o/x students in Oregon were not current English learners. In fact,
according to figure 9, only 32.7 percent of Latina/o/x students were current English learners in 2022-23.
Moreover, 32.6 percent of Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander students were current English learners.

Figure 9. Percentage of each racial/ethnic group who were current English learners in 2022-23.

Latina/o/x 32.7
Native Hawaiian/Pacific Islander 32.6
Asian 22.7
Black/African American 13.3
American Indian/Alaska Native 6.8
Multi-Racial 14
White 1.4

Section 2: Participation in Targeted Programs

Schools and districts deliver a range of programs that aim to address the needs of particular groups of
students. These include free or reduced price meals, special education, migrant education, and TAG
programs. Most of these programs receive some federal funding; however, TAG programs receive only state
funding. This section of the report describes the participation of English learners in each of these programs
during the 2022-23 school year.

Free or Reduced Price Meals

Students who come from low-income families (those earning below 185 percent of the federal poverty line)
are eligible for free or reduced price meals. The percentage of students receiving free or reduced price meals

16

Packet page 27 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

is an estimate of the level of poverty or economic disadvantage in a school. It is an imprecise measure, since
some eligible students and families never apply to the program; however, it provides the best data currently
available to compare poverty and economic disadvantage levels across schools and districts.

According to figure 10, current and former English learners are much more likely than never English learners
to be eligible for free or reduced price meals. This suggests that households for current and former English
learners are more likely to experience poverty and economic disadvantage. Overall, 88.4 percent of current
English learners come from economically disadvantaged households®.

Figure 10. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners receiving free or reduced price meals
in 2022-23.

Current English Learners 88.4
Former English Learners 79.8
Never English Learners 59.0
0 10 20 30 40 50 60 70 80 90 100

Special Education

Students who are current English learners and receive special education services and supports are known as
dual-identified students, since they receive instruction, supports, and services from two programs (i.e.,
English language and special education).

There is concern in the field about the difficulty of accurately identifying current English learners who need
special education services and supports. Schools may incorrectly identify current English learners as having a
learning disability when, in fact, it is their developing English proficiency that adversely influences their
educational progress. On the other hand, some schools may overlook genuine disabilities, assuming that
current English learners just need more time to learn English. Both identification challenges are present not
only in Oregon but across the United States (Artiles & Ortiz, 2002; Hamayan, Marler, Sanchez Lopez &
Damico, 2007; Umansky, Thompson, & Diaz, 2017).

Ever English learners and never English learners received special education services
and supports at about the same rate.

As figure 11 illustrates, a far higher rate of current English learners (19.7 percent) received special education
services and supports as compared to former (6.4 percent) and never English learners (16.1 percent).

6 Although the COVID-19 related waivers issued by the USDA to allow meals to be served at no cost to all students
ended in 2021-22 school year, about 54% of Oregon schools provided free meals to all their students in 2022-23
school year.

17

Packet page 28 of 54



English Learners in Oregon
However, the percentage of ever English learners (the combination of current and former English learners)
receiving services and supports is very similar to that for never English learners.

Figure 11. Percentage of current, former, never, and ever English learners receiving special education
services and supports in 2022-23.

Current English Learners 19.7
Never English Learners 16.1
Ever English Learners 14.3
Former English Learners 6.4
0 5 10 15 20 25

The percentage of current English learners receiving special education slightly
decreased in 2022-23.

In 2022-23, 11,694 current English learners (19.7 percent) were receiving special education supports and
services. The number of current English learners receiving special education services and supports in 2022-23
represents a slight decrease from the year before, when 20.3 percent of current English learners received
special education services and supports (see figure 12).

Figure 12. Percentage of current English learners receiving special education services and supports (2017-
18 to 2022-23).

25

23
20.6 21
21 20.3

21.3 21.1

19 19.7

17

15
2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Most current English learners with a disability in 2022-23 had a specific learning disability (3,611 students) or
a speech or communication disorder (2,816 students) as their primary disability.” Other primary disabilities,
with 100 or more current English learners in 2022-23, included autism spectrum disorder, other health

7 A specific learning disability refers to a disorder in one or more of the basic psychological processes involved in
understanding or using language that may manifest itself in difficulties in listening, thinking, speaking, reading,
writing, spelling, or doing math calculations. A speech or language impairment refers to a communication disorder
such as stuttering, impaired articulation, or a language or voice impairment that adversely affects a students’
learning or educational performance.

18

Packet page 29 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

impairments, developmental delay, intellectual disability, emotional behavior disability, deaf or hard of
hearing, hearing impairment (see Table 6).

Table 6. Primary disabilities involving 100 or more current English learners in 2022-23.

Disability Type Number iz:::::t English Percent T_L:::z:t English
Specific Learning Disability 3,611 6.1%
Communication Disorder 2,816 4.8%
Autism Spectrum Disorder 1,096 1.8%
Other Health Impairments 1,084 1.8%
Developmental Delay 801 1.4%
Intellectual Disability 683 1.2%
Emotional Disturbance 237 0.4%
Hearing Impairment 186 0.3%

Migrant Education

Some English learners also participate in migrant education programs. Students ages 3-21 can qualify for Title
I-C migrant education programs services if they or their parents are engaging in qualifying agricultural or
fishing work, and they have moved within the past 36 months to obtain or seek this type of work. Many
migrant children experienced poverty, and when they move, they confront the challenges of having to adjust
to different teachers with different instructional approaches and materials, as well as building new social
connections. The intent of migrant education programs is to ensure that migrant children receive the support
that addresses their unique situations and are able to receive supports necessary to succeed academically.

10.5 percent of current English learners received services from Migrant Education
Programs in 2022-23.

Oregon has one of the largest migratory student populations nationally. Across the state in the 2022-23,
6,232 current English learners participated in migrant education programs. That number translates to 10.5
percent of all current English learners. It also means that more than half (57.5 percent) of the 10,844
students in migrant education programs were current English Learners in 2022-23. Moreover, 31.4 percent of
students in migrant education programs in 2022-23 were former English learners. This also implies that 88.8
percent of the 10,844 students who received services from migrant education programs were ever English
learners.®

Approximately 101 districts in 2022-23 school year enrolled students who qualified for migrant education
programs. Ten districts with the largest population of English learners participating in their migrant education
program in 2022-23 (see table 7).

8 The data for this portion of the report relies on student enrollments as of the first school day in May 2023.

19

Packet page 30 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Table 7. Districts with the largest number of English learners participating in migrant education programs
in 2022-23.

District Numt?er of Current. ELs in District Numl?er of Current_ ELs in
Migrant Education Migrant Education
Salem-Keizer SD 24) 928 Hood River County SD 261
Hillsboro SD 1J 358 North Wasco County 253
SD 21
Medford SD 549C 348 Hermiston SD 8 243
Woodburn SD 103 318 Beaverton SD 48] 205
Forest Grove SD 15 290 Nyssa SD 26 168

Talented and Gifted

The state requires that all school districts establish policies and procedures to identify students to participate
in TAG programs. These students may have high general intelligence and/or demonstrate unusual academic
ability in one or more particular areas (Gubbins et al., 2020). State law requires districts to develop a plan to
provide programs and services beyond regular school programs in order to ensure that eligible students can
develop and realize their potential (OAR 581-022-2500).

Correctly identifying students for TAG programs and providing specialized services is important because
these students may have both unique talents and face unique challenges. For example, some TAG students
struggle with perfectionism and the ability to cope with failure. Others engage only selectively at school and
have high levels of absenteeism. Findings from the ODE suggest that approximately 10 percent of TAG
students drop out of high school (Allen, 2016).

Current English Learners were rarely identified for TAG Programs.

According to figure 13, 6.5 percent of never English learners (31,032 students) were identified for TAG
programs in 2022-23. While 5.7 percent of former English learners were identified (2,345 students) and 5.3
percent of ever English learners were identified (2,336 students), less than 1 percent (0.5% percent) of
current English learners were identified for TAG programs in 2022-23 (283 students). Never English learners
were about 14 times more likely to be identified for TAG programs than current English learners in 2022-23.

Figure 13. Percentage of current, former, ever, and never English learners who participated in a TAG
program in 2022-23.

Never English Learners 7.0
Former English Learners 5.7
Ever English Learners 2.6
Current English Learners 0.5
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
20

Packet page 31 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Section 3: Language Development and Academic Outcomes for English Learners

Students who are current English learners have to develop proficiency in English. In addition and at the same
time, they must learn all the same academic content as other students in Oregon. This section of the report
provides data about English language proficiency and academic outcomes of current English learners (with
comparisons to former, ever, and never English learners).

Progress towards English Language Proficiency

Title I-A of the Every Student Succeeds Act (ESSA) requires current English learners to take an English
language proficiency assessment (ELPA) annually. The ELPA measures a student’s proficiency in the domains
of listening, reading, speaking, and writing. Students who demonstrate proficiency on all four ELPA domains
are ready to exit the ELD program. Since 2017-18, the ODE monitors whether current English learners are on
track to attain English language proficiency using a trajectory expectation model. Current English learners are
on track if their current ELPA domain performance meets or exceeds trajectory expectations given (1) initial
ELPA domain performance, (2) years identified as a current English learner, and (3) disability and/or an
interrupted formal education status. These expectations are in line with trajectory expectations indicated by
research on English learners (see Hakuta, Goto Butler, & Witt, 2000; Robinson, Cimpian, Thompson, &
Umansky, 2016; Umansky & Reardon, 2014), as well as SIFE, and dual-identified English learners (see Burke,
Morita-Mullaney, & Singh, 2016; Conger, 2009; Kieffer & Parker, 2016; Thompson, 2015; Umansky &
Reardon, 2014). Interested readers are also referred to the Oregon’s ESSA Consolidated State Plan (2017) for
Oregon’s trajectory expectations (pp. 43-44).

According to figure 14, as the grade level increases, the percentage of current English learners on track to
attain English language proficiency decreases from 58.8 percent in elementary school grades to 24.8 percent
in high school grades. Furthermore, the same pattern is evident for current English learners with disabilities
where the percentage decreases from 39.7 percent in elementary school grades to 8.8 percent in high school
grades. To some extent, the decrease in the percentage of current English learners on track to attain English
language proficiency from elementary to high school grades is not a surprise due to the annual exiting of
current English learners and the annual enroliment of new ELs. This has a considerable impact on the
composition of current English learners across grade levels. Thus, inferences and comparisons across grade
levels and between groups of current English learners (e.g., those with and without disabilities) must use

caution.

21

Packet page 32 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 14. Percentage of all current English learners and current English learners with disabilities on track
to attain English language proficiency by elementary (K-5), middle (6-8), and high school grades (9-12) in
2022-23.

100

80

58.8
60
39.7
40 309 24.8
17
20 8.8
0 7 V7777
Grades K-5 Grades 6-8 Grades 9-12
All Current English Learners [ Current English Learners with Disabilities

Long-term current English learners made up 21.9 percent of all current English

learners.

Parents and communities have concerns about the ability of Oregon’s schools and districts to ensure current
English learners attain English language proficiency and exit an ELD program within an appropriate amount of
time. Current English learners who are unable to meet proficiency expectations after a period of time are
known as long-term current English Learners. The ODE defines a long-term current English learner as a
student who receives English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program for more than

seven years.

In 2022-23, most current English learners (78.1 percent) were not long-term current English learners;
however, this means that 21.9 percent of current English learners received English language instruction,
supports, and services for more than seven years. This is a concern because slower development of English
language proficiency is highly predictive of other academic challenges (Menken & Kleyn, 2009; Danahy Ebert
& Reilly, 2022). An important point to consider is the ability of Oregon’s schools and districts to meet the
needs of current English learners. This is particularly salient given that 40.5 percent of current English
learners with disabilities received English language instruction, supports, and services for more than seven
years in 2022-23.

Approximately 31 percent of current English learners receiving special education
services and supports developed English language proficiency in seven years.

It is also useful to look at the development of English language proficiency from another angle, namely, what
proportion of current English learners develop proficiency within a particular amount of time?

This measure uses data for all current English learners who received English language instruction, supports,
and services in an ELD program in 2022-23 regardless of the length, start, or end of enrollment. While most of
the data in this report rely on the first school day in May 2023 as a snapshot, this measure includes all current
English learners (even those not enrolled on the first school day in May 2023).

22

Packet page 33 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 15 addresses this question for current English learners with and without disabilities. For current
English learners without disabilities who began receiving English language instruction, supports, and services
on or after July 1, 2016, the probability of reclassification (i.e., attaining English language proficiency and
exiting an ELD program) after seven years is 0.91° (or, after multiplying by 100, 91 percent). That is, 91
percent of the current English learners without disabilities attained English language proficiency and exited
an ELD program after seven years. On the other hand, 31 percent of current English learners with disabilities
attained English language proficiency and exited an ELD program after seven years. Succinctly put, ELs
without a disability are, on average, about three times as much likely to exit the EL program in 7 years than
their EL peers with a disability.

Figure 15. Probability of reclassification for current English learners with and without disabilities after

seven years (July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2023).
o

—

Without Disability 0.91
=== With Disability -

@
o

0.4

ooooo

Cumulative Probability of Reclassification

0.0

ﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂﬂ

Years as Current English Learners

Student Academic Outcomes in English Language Arts and Mathematics

Each year, all Oregon students in grades 3-8 and 11 take state assessments in English language arts and
mathematics. These assessments, offered in English, may be especially challenging for ELs who are still
developing proficiency. For both subjects, a performance level of three or higher meets the state standards.

Former ELs performed similarly or slightly below never ELs in English language arts,

while few current ELs met or exceeded state standards.

At the elementary level (grade 3-5), 6.6 percent of current ELs met or exceeded state standards in English
language arts. In contrast, 54.6 percent of former ELs in elementary hit this benchmark. This was higher than
the percentage of never ELs meeting or exceeding standards, 47.8 percent. In fact, in many districts (n = 74),

% Because ELPA21 was introduced in 2015 and its EL exit data became available in 2016, this value is inflated.

23

Packet page 34 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

a higher percentage of former ELs, compared to never ELs, met benchmark in elementary English language
arts.

At the middle school level (grades 6-8), only 3.7 percent of current ELs met or exceeded state standards in
English language arts. Additionally, 38.1 percent of former ELs and 47.0 percent of never ELs met or exceeded
standards. In 46 districts, a higher percentage of former ELs, compared to never ELs, met benchmark.

Among high school students (grade 11), 5.1 percent of current ELs, 41.5 percent for former ELs, and 50.3
percent of never ELs met or exceeded state standards. At the high school level, there were 36 districts® in
which a higher percentage of former ELs than never ELs met the benchmark in English language arts.

Figure 16. Percentage of current, former and never ELs meeting or exceeding state standards in English
Language Arts in elementary, middle and high school, 2022-23!

70

60

50.3

50 a7

41.5

40

30

20

10 5.1

Grades 3-5 Grades 6-8 Grade 11

Current English Learners @ Former English Learners Never English Learners

In math, former ELs performed below never ELs, especially in middle and high school,

while less than 10 percent of current EL met or exceeded state standards.

At the elementary level, 7.1 percent of current ELs met or exceeded standards in math (Figure 17). In
addition, 44.3 percent of former ELs met or exceeded standards in math. The percentage of never ELs
meeting or exceeding standards was somewhat lower, 40 percent.

10 These districts include: Baker SD 5J, Oregon Trail SD 46, Gladstone SD 115, Scappoose SD 1J, North Bend SD 13,
Crook County SD, Douglas County SD 4, Winston-Dillard SD 116, Central Point SD 6, Eagle Point SD 9, Culver SD 4,
Three Rivers/Josephine County SD, Klamath County SD, Lake County SD 7, Fern Ridge SD 28J, Siuslaw SD 97J,
Central Linn SD 552, Nyssa SD 26, Mt Angel SD 91, Reynolds SD 7, Centennial SD 28J, Corbett SD 39, David Douglas
SD 40, Tillamook SD 9, Echo SD 5, Milton-Freewater Unified SD 7, Pendleton SD 16, Stanfield SD 61, La Grande SD
1, North Powder SD 8J, Mitchell SD 55, Yambhill Carlton SD 1, Amity SD 4J, Dayton SD 8, Sheridan SD 48J, North
Wasco County SD 21.

1 n this chart, the group “current EL” includes only students who were classified as current ELs at the time of
testing. In some other state accountability reports, the performance of current and recently reclassified ELs are
reported together.

24

Packet page 35 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Among middle school students, 2.1 percent of current ELs met or exceeded standards in math, compared to
21.4 percent of former ELs and 31.5 percent of never ELs.

Among students in grade 11, 1.3 percent of current ELs, 13.2 percent of former ELs, and 23.3 percent of
never ELs met or exceeded standards in math. At all levels and among all groups, fewer students met or
exceeded standards in math than in English language arts.

Overall, similar patterns emerge in Math as in ELA, with higher levels of proficiency at the elementary level
than other educational levels.

Figure 17. Percentage of current, former and never ELs meeting or exceeding state standards in
mathematics in elementary, middle and high school, 2022-2312

50
44.3

45 40
40
35 31.5
30
25 21.4 233
20 y
15 / 13.2
10 7.1 % 7

5 2.1 / 13 %

0

Grades 3-5 Grades 6-8 Grade 11
Current English Learners @ Former English Learners Never English Learners

Section 4: Attendance, Progress toward Graduation, Graduation, and Beyond

This section of the report examines several important outcomes for English learners. These are attendance,
ninth grade progress towards graduation, four-year graduation, earning a Seal of Biliteracy, and post-
secondary enrollment.

Regular Attendance

In recent years, researchers and educators alike have devoted increasing attention to ensuring students
attend school on a regular basis. Research has shown that even moderate levels of absenteeism can have a
profound impact on students’ grades, performance on standardized assessments, graduation rates, and
success in college (Allensworth & Evans, 2016; Ginsburg, Jordan, & Chang, 2014). In Oregon, students exhibit
“regular attendance” at school if they attend more than 90 percent of school days during the school year.

12 Also in this chart, the group “current EL” includes only students who were classified as current ELs at the time of
testing.

25

Packet page 36 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Among elementary grades in 2022-23, former and never English learners have the highest levels of regular
attendance (see figure 18). Current English learners, on the other hand, have lower rates of regular
attendance in elementary, middle, and high school grades. In fact, regular attendance rates decline
considerably for current, former, and never English learners in middle and high school grades (with current
and former English learners declining by approximately 14.3 (i.e., 58.5 —44.0) and 21.5 (i.e., 75.2 - 53.7)
percentage points between elementary and high school grades).

Figure 18. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners regularly attending school by
elementary (K-5), middle (6-8), and high school grades (9-12) in 2022-23

100
75.2
80
. 64.9 66.8 65.4
58.3 [ 56.2 53.7 58.1
0 // 7 y
40 / /
20 / /
0
K-5 6-8 9-12
Current English Learners B Former English Learners Never English Learners

On Track to Graduate

Around the country, states and districts track whether students in the 9t grade are on track to graduate
within four years. They do this because ninth grade is a critical year for determining whether students will
ultimately graduate from high school; identifying students who are not on track allows schools to provide
supports and interventions to help keep students in school and progressing towards graduation. In Oregon,
students in the 9t grade are on track to graduate if they earn at least six credits or 25 percent of the credits
their district requires for graduation. However, one should note that ODE’s data only captures the number of
the credits earned and not the specific courses associated with those credits. From 2018-19 to 2022-23, a
higher percentage of former and never English learners were on-track to graduate compared to current
English learners.’3

According to figure 19, former and never English learners in 9t grade are on track to graduate at substantially
higher percentages than current English learners from 2018-19 to 2022-23. Former and never English
learners have very similar percentages. Their gap widens from 0.8 percentage points in 2018-19 to 5.3
percentage points in 2020-21. However, the gap between former and never English learners completely
closes in 2021-22. Despite a considerable decline in 2020-21 likely due to the impact of the COVID-19
pandemic, current, former, and never English learners experience a sizeable improvement in 2021-22 with
the current and former English learners increasing by 14.2 and 13.4 percentage points since 2020-21. Finally,
all three groups of students continued to grow in 22-23, with current English learners improving by 1.7
percentage points, former English learners by 1.0 percentage point, and never English learners by 0.8

13 Data representing the percentage of current, former, and never English learners who were on track to graduate
in ninth grade were not available during the 2019-20 school year. The reason for the unavailability is due to the
State of Oregon’s response to the COVID-19 pandemic (e.g., the cancellation of data collections that either capture
the specific data or support the calculation of this measure at the district and state levels).

26

Packet page 37 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

percentage points. It must be noted also that as part of Senate Bill 744 passed in 2021, these students were
not required to demonstrate proficiency for three of the nine essential skills as one of their non-credit

graduation requirements.

Figure 19. Percentage of 9'" grade current, former, and never English learners on track to graduate within
four years (2018-19 to 2022-23).

100 86.2 75.7

83.8 84.6
80 85.4 il L SCSTPTPE PP L it £ ¥ 84.8
60 20.4
70.8 68.5

40 54.3 70.2
20

0

2018-19 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
Current English Learners = e = e Former English Learners Never English Learners

Four-Year Graduation

The ODE uses a cohort adjusted graduation rate to examine and monitor the percentage of students
graduating within a specific number of years. The data for this section relies on the four-year cohort adjusted
graduation rate for current, former, and never English learners. For the purposes of reporting graduation
data to the public, current English learners are multilingual students who received English language
instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any time during high school. Former English learners
are multilingual students who attained English language proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to
entering high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive
English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their
parents or guardians waived services. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual English or multilingual
students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD
program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve.

Former English learners graduated at rates similar to or better than never English learners; however,
substantially fewer current English learners graduated in four years.

According to figure 20, former and never English learners graduate in four years at relatively similar rates;
however, although similar, the rate for former English learners was higher from 2016-17 to 2022-23. Indeed,
consistently since years 2016-17, the four-year graduation rate for former English learners was higher than

the rate for never English learners.

Current English learners, on the other hand, graduated in four years at lower rates than former and never
English learners; however, it is important to note that the four-year graduation rate for current English
learners has grown considerably from 2016-17 to 2022-23 (an increase of 13.2 percentage points).

27

Packet page 38 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 20. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners graduating within four years (2016-17
to 2022-23).

100 80.0 82.5 84.3 86.1 84.2 86.4 87.6
80 -_--------------—------n-------‘.-------_-------
77.2 79.2 803 83.1 81.1 81.7 81.5
o0 64.6 64.4 65.3 68.1
40 54.9 558 60.2
20
0
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23
Current English Learners === Former English Learners Never English Learners

Current English learners graduating in four years were over 2.8 times more likely

to receive a modified diploma

Modified diplomas are designed for students who meet certain criteria listed in OAR 581-022-2010. Modified
diplomas require fewer credits to graduate compared to a regular high school diploma. Among the current
English learners who graduated in four years in 2022-23 (i.e., 2,297 students), 261 students (11.4 percent)
received a modified diploma (see table 8). By contrast, among the former English learners that graduated in 4
years in 2022-23 (i.e., 5,140 students), 112 students (2.2 percent) received a modified diploma. Finally,
among the never English learners who graduated in four years in 2022-23 (i.e., 30,270 students), 1,201
students (4.0 percent) received a modified diploma.

In addition, among the students that graduated in four years in 2022-23, current English learners were more
than 2.8 times (11.4 percent =+ 4 percent) more likely to receive a modified diploma compared to that for

never English learners. This ratio slightly decreases to 2.6 times (11.1 percent = 4.3 percent) for cohorts that
graduated in five years.

Table 8. Percentage of students receiving regular vs. modified diplomas

Student (Diploma Type) Four-Year Cohort Five-Year Cohort
Current English Learners (Modified) 11.4% 11.1%
Former English Learners (Modified) 2.2% 2.3%
Never English Learners (Modified) 4.0% 4.3%
Current English Learners (Regular) 88.6% 88.9%
Former English Learners (Regular) 97.8% 97.7%
Never English Learners (Regular) 96.0% 95.7%

Oregon State Seal of Biliteracy

The Seal of Biliteracy offers recognition of the many cognitive, academic, and economic benefits of
bilingualism. Students can earn a Seal of Biliteracy on their diplomas if they meet the following requirements:

28

Packet page 39 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

e Meet all graduation requirements, and
e score at the intermediate high level in listening, speaking, reading, and writing in a partner language.

The data for this section rely on students who graduated in 2022-23 (and were part of the four-year cohort
adjusted graduation rate) as the denominator in calculations. Moreover, this section will examine the count
and percentage of current, former, and never English learners'* who earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 2022-23.

The majority of students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy in 2022-23 were ever
English learners.

Of the 37,710 students who graduated in 2022-23, 2,311 students (about 6.1 percent) also earned the Seal of
Biliteracy. Among those 2,311 students, 46.4 percent were never English learners, 43.8 percent were former
English learners, and 9.7 percent were current English learners (see figure 21). In other words, 53.6 percent
of those who earned the Seal of Biliteracy were ever English learners (i.e., current plus former English
learners). Note that the majority of students who earn the Seal of Biliteracy are (1) ever English learners and
(2) never English learners who are native speakers of languages in addition to English.

Figure 21. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2022-
23 (among all students who earned the Seal of Biliteracy).

Never English Learners 46.4
Former English Learners 43.8
Current English Learners 9.7

0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0 30.0 35.0 40.0 45.0 50.0

According to figure 22, among former English learners who graduated in 2022-23, 19.7 percent earned the
Seal of Biliteracy. Moreover, 9.8 percent of current English learner graduates earned the Seal of Biliteracy in
2022-23. This means that, among ever English learners who graduated in 2022-23, 29.5 percent also earned
the Seal of Biliteracy.

14 For the purposes of reporting Seal of Biliteracy data in this report, current English learners are multilingual
students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any time during
high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive English language
instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their parents or guardians
waived services. Former English learners are multilingual students who attained English language proficiency and
exited an ELD program prior to entering high school. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual English or
multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and services in an
ELD program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve.

29

Packet page 40 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 22. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2022-
23 (among current, former, and never English learner graduates).

Former English Learners 19.7
Current English Learners 9.8
Never English Learners 35
0.0 5.0 10.0 15.0 20.0 25.0

Students earned the Seal of Biliteracy for their knowledge of a diverse combination of
languages; however, English-Spanish was the most common combination.

Among the students who graduated with a Seal of Biliteracy (2,311 students), a vast majority demonstrated
proficiency in a combination of languages. Specifically, English-Spanish was the most common combination of
those languages (82 percent). Other notable combinations of languages in which students demonstrated
their proficiency included English-French (5 percent), English-Japanese (3 percent), and English-Chinese (3
percent).

Eleven districts had 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy.

In 2022-23, eleven districts had 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy (see table 9). Moreover,
among Woodburn’s students who graduated in 2022-23, 52.4 percent earned the Seal of Biliteracy. Four
other districts in 2022-23 had 10 percent or more of their high school graduates earning the Seal of Biliteracy.

Table 9. Districts with 50 or more students earning the Seal of Biliteracy in 2022-2315,

.. Number . . Number
District of Students District of Students
Portland SD 1) 365 Corvallis SD 509 102
Salem-Keizer SD 24) 265 North Clackamas SD 12 78
Beaverton SD 48) 247 West Linn-Wilsonville SD 3) 64
Woodburn SD 103 195 Bend-LaPine Administrative SD 1 60
Eugene SD 4) 157 Lake Oswego SD 7) 55
Hillsboro SD 1J 111

Postsecondary Enrollment

The ODE annually examines and publicly reports the percentage of high school graduates who enroll in post-
secondary education institutions in Oregon and across the U.S. (e.g., public and private, 2-year and 4-year,
etc.). A post-secondary education affords students a wide range of advantages, including greater

15 Note that the counts in this table reflect students who graduated in 2022-23 (and were part of the four-year
cohort adjusted graduation rate) and earned the Seal of Biliteracy.

30

Packet page 41 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

employment opportunities, financial security, opportunities to contribute to their community, and greater
life satisfaction. The data for this measure uses students who graduated in 2019-20 (and were part of the
four-year cohort adjusted graduation rate) as the denominator in calculations. Moreover, this portion of the
report will examine the count and percentage of current, former, and never English learners'® who enrolled
in a post-secondary education institution within sixteen months after graduation.

Never English learners were more likely to enroll in post-secondary education
institutions than current English learners; however, former English learners had

comparable post-secondary enrollment rates as never English learners.

Figure 23 shows the post-secondary enrollment rates by graduation year for three groups of Oregon
students. The post-secondary enrollment rates for never English learners, represented by the gray dotted
line, ranged from 63.5 to 56.6 percent from 2015-16 to 2020-21. The salmon line displays the same
information for students who were current English Learners. Current English learners enrolled in post-
secondary institutions at substantially lower rates than never and former English learners. The post-
secondary enrollment rates for current English learners annually decreased from 49.2 percent in 2015-16 to
46.7 percent in 2016-17. They also decreased in 2017-18; however, they increased in 2018-19. The black
dashed line shows the post-secondary enrollment rates for former English learners. The post-secondary
enrollment rates for former English learners decreased from 62.4 percent in 2015-16 to 60.4 percent in 2016-
17. Moreover, since 2015-16, former English learners had post-secondary enrollment rates that were
reasonably comparable to never English learners.

Figure 23. Percentage of current, former, and never English learners enrolling in post-secondary
institutions within 16 months of high school graduation (2015-16 to 2020-21"7).

70 63.5 63.1 62.6 63.9 56.6
60 Huuug._.._.‘.é.éo..6.‘-‘,“\..“-&“00““0&‘-‘...,._ 57.6
62.4 0.4 61.5 62.9 il kP AR AR TS T
50
54.4 54.9
40 49.2 46.7 50.7
37.7
20
10
0
2015-16 2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21
Current English Learners e e e Former English Learners eeeeee Never English Learners

16 For the purposes of reporting post-secondary enrollment data in this report, current English learners are
multilingual students who received English language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program at any
time during high school. Note that current English learners included students who were eligible to receive English
language instruction, supports, and services in an ELD program but did not participate because their parents or
guardians waived services. Former English learners are multilingual students who attained English language
proficiency and exited an ELD program prior to entering high school. Lastly, never English learners are monolingual
English or multilingual students who were not eligible to receive English language instruction, supports, and
services in an ELD program at any time in grades kindergarten through twelve.

17 The year (e.g., 2020-21) represents the school year in which students graduated from high school.

31

Packet page 42 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Section 5: State Revenues and Expenditures for Current English Learners

Each year, Oregon’s State School Fund provides funding to districts through General Purpose Grants. The
amount of the grant relies on a formula that considers the number of students in the district (known as
average daily membership weighted or ADMw). On average, the per-pupil funding amount in 2022-23 was
$9,622.%8 In addition to this basic funding, districts receive additional state funds for each student enrolled in
an ELD program. This amount is 0.5 x $9,622 or $4,811 per current English learner. Altogether, the state
allocated $250,092,649 for these additional English learner funds in the 2022-23 school year.

Figure 24 depicts the relationship between current English learner revenues the state allocated to districts via
the State School Fund Formula and the total current English learner expenditures from the General Fund
expressed as a ratio. Statewide, the ratio of expenditures to revenues in 2022-23 was 0.87, meaning that
district expenditures on current English learners reflected 87 percent of the funds the state allocated to
districts via the State School Fund Formula. Some districts spent more than this percentage (up to 644
percent), while others reported spending less (as little as 0 percent). The values on the extreme ends of the
range, however, may reflect variations in the way that some districts report data. Some districts with few
current English learners report revenue received from the state, but do not identify expenditures specific to
current English learners, even though they may expend funds for English learner services. Other districts on
the high end of the spending ratio may include expenses for dual-language programs that also educate
former and never English learners, rather than calculating the percentage spent solely on current English
learners.

Figure 24. Ratio of current English learner expenditures to revenues across districts in 2022-23.
7.00
6.00
5.00
4.00
3.00
2.00 0.87
1.00

0.00 I

As figure 25 illustrates, the statewide ratio increased steadily from 2016-17 to 2018-19; however, in 2019-20
through 2022-23, the ratio decreased below 1.0.

18 While $9,622 is the average amount, the grant amount can vary a bit for different districts because of the way
the formula is set up.

32

Packet page 43 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

Figure 25. Ratio of statewide expenditures on current English learners to revenues (2016-17 to 2022-23).

1.20 1.00
0.98
1.00 0.86

1.04
0.80 0.92 0.95

0.87
0.60
0.40
0.20

0.00
2016-17 2017-18 2018-19 2019-20 2020-21 2021-22 2022-23

Expenditures from the General Fund on current English learners either belong to Function 1291 (covering
expenditures for instruction and interventions to help current English learners learn English) or Area of
Responsibility 280 (other supports for current English learners, such as interpretation services or

transportation). 1

Current English learner expenditures for 2022-23 totaled $216,663,622. Districts accounted for

approximately 81.2 percent of the expenditures (5175,970,409) using Function 1291 and 18.8 percent of the

expenditures ($40,693,213) using Area of Responsibility 280.

In addition to this state funding, districts with at least 77 current English learners may access federal Title IlI
grants, which in 2022-23 provided an additional $132.95 per student for supplemental current English learner

services?°. Additional information on the grant amounts is available on the ODE website under Title [lI

Allocations.

19 For a more detailed description of the accounting system categories, see Oregon’s Program Budgeting and
Accounting Manual.
20 Districts with fewer than 77 students could join other districts in a consortium to access these grants.

33

Packet page 44 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

References

Allen, A. (2016). Examining best practices in gifted education to identify and serve culturally and linguistically
diverse students. Presentation at the Oregon Association of Bilingual Educators, Happy Valley, Oregon, June
24, 2016.

Allensworth, E., & Evans, S. (2016). Tackling absenteeism in Chicago. Phi Delta Kappan, 98(2), 16-21.
https://doi.org/10.1177/0031721716671900

Artiles, A., & Ortiz. A. (Eds.). (2002). English language Learners with special education needs: Assessment,
identification, and instruction. Washington, DC: Center for Applied Linguistics.

Browder, C. T. (2014). English Learners with limited or interrupted formal education: Risk and resilience in
educational outcomes. University of Maryland: dissertation.

De Jong, E.J. (2004). After exit: Academic achievement patterns of former English language Learners.
Education Policy Analysis Archives, 12 (50). Downloaded from https://epaa.asu.edu/ojs/article/view/205/331

Ebert, K. D., & Reilly, M. (2022). Predictors of language proficiency in school-age Spanish—English bilingual
children with and without developmental language disorder. Bilingualism: Language and Cognition, 25(2),
296-306.

Flores, S. M., Batalova, J., & Fix, M. (2012). The Educational trajectories of English language learners in Texas.
Washington DC: Migration Policy Institute.

Garcia, 0. (2009). Emergent bilinguals and TESOL: What's in a name? TESOL Quarterly, 43(2), 322-326.
https://doi.org/10.1002/j.1545-7249.2009.tb00172.x

Ginsburg, A., Jordan, P., & Chang, H. (2014). Absences add up: How school attendance affects student success.
Attendance Works. Downloaded from https://www.attendanceworks.org/wp-
content/uploads/2017/05/Absenses-Add-Up September-3rd-2014.pdf

Gubbins, E. J., Siegle, D., Peters, P. M., Carpenter, A. Y., Hamilton, R., McCoach, D. B,, ... & Long, D. (2020).
Promising practices for improving identification of English learners for gifted and talented programs. Journal
for the Education of the Gifted, 43(4), 336-369.

Hamayan, E., Marler, B., Sanchez Lopez, C., & Damico, J. (2007). Special education considerations for English
language Learners: Delivering a continuum of services. Philadelphia: Caslon.

Hopkins, M., Thompson, K. D., Linquanti, R., Hakuta, K., & August, D. (2013). Fully accounting for English
learner performance: A key issue in ESEA reauthorization. Educational Researcher, 42(2), 101-108.
https://doi.org/10.3102/0013189X12471426

Menken, K., & Kleyn, T. (2009). The difficult road for long-term English Learners. Educational Leadership,
66(7), 26-29.

34

Packet page 45 of 54



English Learners in Oregon

ODE ESSA Plan (2017). Oregon’s Consolidated State Plan Under the Every Student Succeeds Act. Available at:

https://www.oregon.qgov/ode/rules-and-
policies/ESSA/Documents/APPROVED%200R ConsolidatedStateplan8-30-17.pdf

Short, D. J., & Fitzsimmons, S. (2007). Double the work: Challenges and solutions to acquiring language and
academic literacy for adolescent English language learners: A report to Carnegie Corporation of New York.
Alliance for Excellent Education.

Thompson, K. D., Umansky, I. M., & Rew, W. J. (2022). Improving understanding of English learner education
through an expanded analytic framework. Educational Policy. https://doi.org/10.1177/08959048221087214

35

Packet page 46 of 54



OSBA Model Sample Policy

C BBFC

Reporting of Suspected Abuse of a Child

{Optional policy. Board members are included in the definition of public official from ORS 419B.005, which are designated
mandatory reporters of child abuse by ORS 419B.010.}

A Board me mandatory reporter of child abuse!. A Board member having reasonable cause to
believe that any child with whom the Board member comes in contact with has suffered abuse or that any
person with whom the Board member comes in contact with has abused a child shall immediately notify
Oregon Department of Human Services (DHS) or law enforcement pursuant to Oregon Revised Statute
(ORS) 419B.015.

The Board member maki rt of child abuse, as required by ORS 419B.010, shall make a report
through DHS?} or to a law enforcement agency within the county where the Board member making the
report is located at the time of the contact.

The report must contain, if known, th s and addresses of the child and the parents of the child or
other persons responsible for the care child, the child’s age, the nature and extent of the abuse,
including any evidence of previous abuse, the explanation given for the abuse, and any other information
that the Board member making the report believes might be helpful in establishing the cause of the abuse

and the identity of the perpetrator.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107 ORS 419B.010
ORS 419B.005 ORS 419B.015

! Includes the neglect of a child; abuse is defined in ORS 419B.005.

2 IHow to report abuse or neglect: Oregon DHS. Call 855-503-SAFE (7233)}

Reporting of Suspected Abuse of a Child — BBFC
1-1

Packet page 47 of 54



Philomath School District 17J

Code: CBC
Adopted: 10/18/18

Superintendent’s Contract

The superintendent, upon appointment by the Board, will receive a written contract which will state the
terms of employment such as compensation, benefits and other conditions. The Board may not issue a
contract that includes terms which direct the superintendent' to take any action that conflicts with a local,
state or federal law? that applies to the district, or which allows the Board to take an adverse employment
action against the superintendent for complying with such laws. Contracts shall not be issued for more
than three years in duration. The contract shall automatically expire at the end of its term. The Board may
elect to issue a subsequent contract at any time for up to three years.

The compensation and benefits for the position of superintendent will be fixed by the Board and based
upon the responsibilities required of the superintendent in performing theirhis/her duties. The Board may
not enter into an employment contract that contains provisions that expressly obligate the district to
compensate the superintendent for work that is not performed.

Provisions for termination of the superintendent’s employment, either by the Board or the superintendent,
will also be set forth in the superintendent’s employment contract. The employment contract, if it includes
a mutually agreed to termination-without-cause provision by the Board, will include a 12-month notice of
termination for such provision.

fThe district may provide health benefits for a superintendent that is no longer employed by the district
until the superintendent:

1.  Reaches 65 years of age; or
2. Finds new employment that provides health benefits.}

For a period of one year after termination of the contract, the superintendent may not:

1. Purchase property or surplus property owned by the district or public charter school; or

2. Use property owned by the district or public charter school in a manner other than the manner
permitted for the general public.

END OF POLICY

! The term “superintendent” includes an interim superintendent.

2 “Local, state or federal law” means a local, state or federal directive having the force of law, including an ordinance, a city or
county resolution, a statute, a court decision, an administrative rule or regulation, an order issued in compliance with ORS
Chapter 183, an executive order or any other directive, declaration or statement that is issued in compliance with the law as
having the force of law and that is issued by a local government as defined in ORS 174.116, the state government as defined in
ORS 174.111 or the federal government.

Superintendent’s Contract — CBC
1-2

Packet page 48 of 54



Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.432 ORS 342.549 OAR 584-005-0005(51)
ORS 332.505 ORS 342.815

Cross Reference(s):

CBB - Recruitment and Appointment of the Superintendent

Superintendent’s Contract — CBC
2-2

Packet page 49 of 54



Philomath School District 17J

Code: JGA

Adopted: 7/09/07
Revised/Readopted: 12/16/19; 6/21/21
Orig. Code: JGA

Corporal Punishment**

The use of corporal punishment in any form is strictly prohibited in the district. No student will be subject
to the infliction of corporal punishment.

“Corporal punishment” is defined as the willful infliction of, or willfully causing the infliction of, physical
pain. Corporal punishment does not include the use of physical force authorized in ORS 161.205 (2), (4) or
(5) for the reasons specified therein, or physical pain or discomfort resulting from or caused by

participation in athletic competition or other such recreational activity, voluntarily engaged in by a student.

No teacher, administrator, other school personnel or school volunteer will subject a student to corporal
punishment or condone the use of corporal punishment by any person under their supervision or control.
Permission to administer corporal punishment will not be sought or accepted from any parent or school
official.

A staff member is authorized to employ reasonable physical force upon a student onlywhen-and to the
extent that the application of physical force is consistent with ORS 339.285 - -339.303 and is not corporal
punishment as defined in ORS 339.250(9).- Physical force shall not be used to discipline or punish a
student. A staff member found in violation of this policy may be subject to discipline up to and including
dismissal. A volunteer found in violation of this policy by administration may be subject to sanctions
and/or prohibited from volunteer service in the district.

The superintendent shall inform all staff members and volunteers of this policy.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 161.205 ORS 339.250 OAR 584-020-0040
ORS 332.107

ORS 339.240 OAR 581-021-0050 — 0075

Cross Reference(s):

JGAB - Use of Restraint or Seclusion

Corporal Punishment** — JGA
1-1

Packet page 50 of 54



OSBA Model Sample Policy

Codec: JH
Adopted:

Student Welfare**
{Optional policy.}

The district provides supervision of students. Such supervision does not include early morning or the time
following usual departure unless students are present for a scheduled school-sponsored activity. Hours
when supervision 1s available shall be included in the-fstadent/parent-handbeek}: school communications.

The district further requires the following practices:

1.  Maintaining a safe sehool eénvironment; designated personnel will be responsible for periodically
inspecting the physical condition of all equipment, buildings and grounds;

2. Expecting school personnel and students to observe safe practices, particularly in those areas of
instruction or extracurricular activities that offer special hazards;

3. Providing safety education to studeats as is germane to particular subjects such as, but not limited to,
science, professional technical, health and physical education courses;

4.  Providing first-aid care for students in case of accident or sudden illness; and

5. Providing adequate supervision on the ground§ihen they are used by students during established
school hours or school-sponsored activities.

School personnel will be concerned about school safety issues, including but not limited to, safety issues in
or on school property and awareness of persons loitering in or near school buildings or sitting in parked
vehicles nearby. Staff shall report all such instances to the principal for designee}. The principal for
designee}-will notify law enforcement if circumstances warragt stuch action.

Students will be instructed on personal safety and that of othetsim'accordance with State Health Standards.
Students will be instructed to tell or report to teachers, their parents, law enforcement or school security
personnel of any safety concerns.

END OF POLICY

Legal Reference(s):

ORS 332.107 OAR 581-022-2220 OAR 581-022-2225

Student Welfare** — JH
1-1

Packet page 51 of 54



Philomath School District 17J

Code: KBA-AR
Revised/Reviewed: 2/24/20; 2/16/23

Public Records

In compliance with Oregon law the following guidelines apply to the dissemination, inspection and
examination of the public records of the district:

1. A public records request shall be submitted in writing through the district office at 1620 Applegate
St., Philomath, OR. 97370.

2. Upon receipt of a written request, the district shall respond within five business days!
acknowledging receipt of the request or completing? the district’s response to the request. If the
district provides an acknowledgment of the request, it must:

a Confirm that the district is the custodian of the requested record;

b.  Inform the requester that the district is not the custodian of the requested record; or

c.  Notify the requester that the district is uncertain whether the district is the custodian of the
requested record.

3. If'the district is the custodian of the requested record, as soon as reasonably possible but not later
than 10 business days after the date the district is required to acknowledge receipt of the request as
described above, the district shall:

a.  Complete its response to the public records request in accordance with ORS 192.329(2). If the
district determines that a record is exempt from public disclosure, the district will include a
statement to that effect and that the requester may appeal the decision pursuant to state law; or

b.  Provide a written statement that the district is still processing the request and a reasonable
estimated date by which the district expects to complete its response based on the information
currently available.

4.  The time periods, established by Oregon law and identified above in Section 2 or 3, will not apply to
the district if compliance would be impracticable because:

a. The staff or volunteers® necessary to complete a response to the public records request are
unavailable;
b.  Compliance would demonstrably impede the district’s ability to perform other necessary

services; or

! “Business day” means a day other than Saturday, Sunday or a legal holiday, and on which at least one paid employee of the
district is scheduled to and does report to work. Business day does not include any day on which the central administration
offices of the district are closed.

2 The district response to a public records request will be considered complete when it complies with criteria in Oregon law
(ORS 192.329).

3 Staff member or volunteers who are on leave or are not scheduled to work are considered to be unavailable.

Public Records — KBA-AR
1-3

Packet page 52 of 54



10.

c.  Of the volume of the public records request being simultaneously processed by the district.

In these situations, the district shall, as soon as practicable and without unreasonable delay,
acknowledge a public records request and complete the response to the request.

The district may request additional information or clarification from the requester for the purpose of
expediting the district’s response to the request as permitted by law. If the district requests additional
information or clarification, in good faith, the obligation to complete the request is suspended until
the requester provides the requested information or clarification or affirmatively declines to provide
the information or clarification. If the requester fails to respond within 60 days to a good faith
request from the district for information or clarification, the district shall close the request.

If a copy of a public record is requested, the district will provide a single copy. If a request to inspect
a public record is made and the record is maintained in a machine readable or electronic form, the
custodian shall provide the record in the form requested, if available. If the public record is not
available in the form requested, it will be made available in the form the record is maintained. If a
person who is a party to a civil judicial proceeding to which the district is a party or who has filed
notice under Oregon Revised Statute (ORS) 30.275(5)(a) asks to inspect or to receive a copy of a
public record that the person knows relates to the proceeding or notice, the individual must submit
the request in writing to the designated custodian of district records and at the same time to the
district’s attorney.

Information will be made available to individuals with disabilities in an accessible format upon
request and advance notice. Auxiliary aids and services available to qualified persons with
disabilities may include large print, Braille, audio recordings, readers, assistance in locating
materials or other equally effective accommodations.

Where the labor effort exceeds$30 minutes}, labor, material and out-of-pocket charges will be
chargedreimbursed to the requester.

F{*} Costsdistrict—Laber will be as follows:

Clerical time: $40 per hour;
Administrator time: $90 per hour;
Attorney time: $300 per hour;

Prlntlng $0 eﬂeﬂa%d—%ﬂ%@e&ﬁ&ﬁ%#ﬂ%%ﬂeye&&#e&e@%%&%&e%ekﬁ
¢ ~$-25 per page.}

oo oe

o

—Auxiliary aids and services for qualified persons with disabilities will be available at no additional
charge.

If the district has informed the requester of a permitted fee, the obligation of the district to complete
its response to the request is suspended until the fee has been received by the district. If the requester
fails to pay the fee within 60 days of the date they were informed of the fee or fails to pay the fee

4 {ORS 192.324(7) requires the public body to include “the amounts of and the manner of calculating fees that the public body
charges for responding to requests of public records.” If the district does not have other written procedures which include this
required information besides a KBA-AR, add this information here. Dollar amounts should be reviewed to reflect actual district

costs. }

Public Records — KBA-AR
2-3

Packet page 53 of 54



within 60 days of the date on which the district informed them of the denial of the fee waiver, the
district shall close the request.

Public Records — KBA-AR
3-3

Packet page 54 of 54



